

North TSA Draft Plan- City Council Version: Log of Revisions - May 2016

Table of Contents

Added heading and page number for "Resilience and Sustainability"

Pg. 4: Under Plan Recommendations: Northern Properties Subarea: Updated Page Number of Regulatory Settings from ~~106~~ to **104**.

Pg. 4: Under Appendices, changed the name of Appendix D to read "Recommended Actions, and Interests and Costs Table"

Pg. 4: Under Appendices: Added: Appendix E: Scheduling and Estimated Costs for North TSA Projects

Pg. 4: Under Appendices: Added: Appendix F: Feedback Themes Not Included in the Plan

Pg. 4: Under Appendices: Added Appendix G: Glossary

Introduction

Pg. 5: North TSA Basemap: Changed Schneider Gulch to Schneider Draw

Pg. 7: At the end of the third paragraph, added the statement "In fairness to the process, it should be acknowledged that three OSBT members voted for the scenario while two voted against it. The main point of contention was whether a north-south connector trail should be constructed through the North Foothills HCA.

Pg. 7: Revised language in the fourth paragraph to past tense. "The fourth and final phase, ~~now underway~~, included the review of the draft plan by the community, the OSBT and recommendation and acceptance of the plan by the Boulder City Council."

Pg. 8: Revised heading language to read: Since The City of Boulder kicked off the public process for the North TSA Plan in ~~late~~ April of ~~last year~~ **2015**, Open Space and Mountain Parks and the Open Space Board of Trustees have:

Pg. 12 Added Resilience and Sustainability heading. Added the following text in the Resilience and Sustainability section of the plan:
The lands and resources of the North TSA like the Boulder community as a whole, face stresses like climate change, floods, drought, economic disruption and fire. Innovative and inclusive approaches are necessary for the future of the North TSA to be resilient and respond effectively to these challenges. This plan encompasses actions designed to allow the North TSA to better endure these challenges, and not only bounce back but also "bounce forward," preserving and improving the quality of life within our community.
As part of the city's efforts toward improving resilience, one of the major objectives of the North TSA Plan is to increase the physical and environmental sustainability of trails, trailheads and visitor infrastructure while conserving and restoring the valuable natural, agricultural and cultural resources within this area. Sustainable trails have negligible erosion, minimal braiding, and limited seasonal muddiness and will not require rerouting or major maintenance over long periods of time. Sustainable trails, trailheads and infrastructure support the current and anticipated uses and are designed to keep people on trail with minimal impacts to the adjoining natural systems. Implementing the North TSA Plan fosters a step in the direction of a more resilient future.

Plan Recommendations: North TSA-Wide

Pg. 16: Removed Cost Estimate for Actions T1-T9 and Cost Equivalents Information

North TSA Draft Plan- City Council Version: Log of Revisions - May 2016

Pg. 16: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 17: Map 1: Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Added Designate Access Points on either end of the Talon Trail. Added Designate Access Point just north of Glider Access re-route. Removed OSMP access point icon southwest of Wonderland Lake.

Pg. 18: Updated action language to read "As opportunities arise, collaborate with partner agencies to create the following regional trail connections *in a way that minimizes* natural resource impacts."

Pg. 18: Action T13: Added: IBM Connector Trail *underpass and trail* (construction pending).

Pg. 18: Removed Cost Estimate information for Actions T10 to T15.

Pg. 18: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 19: Map 2: Updated map to include "Close and Restore the Current Alignment" in legend and on map (Old Kiln Trail in Wonderland and BVR trails and Buckingham Park). Revised location of Area III arrow and Fourmile Canyon Creek Trail underpass to Cottonwood Trail arrow (and location of T14 label arrow). Added potential future connection arrow for IBM connector underpass and trail. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Added Designate Access Points on either end of the Talon Trail. Added Designate Access Point just north of Glider Access re-route. Removed OSMP access point icon southwest of Wonderland Lake. Changed Schneider Gulch to Schneider Draw.

Pg. 20: Actions T16 to T20, updated action language to read "As opportunities arise, collaborate with partner agencies to create the following local trail connections *in a way that minimizes* natural resource impacts."

Pg. 20: Removed Cost Estimate for Actions T16 to T20 and Action T21. Changed Actions T21 to **Action T21**.

Pg. 20: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 21: Map 2: Updated map to include "Close and Restore the Current Alignment" in legend and on map (Old Kiln Trail in Wonderland and BVR trails and Buckingham Park). Revised location of Area III arrow and Fourmile Canyon Creek Trail underpass to Cottonwood Trail arrow (and location of T14 label arrow). Added potential future connection arrow for IBM connector underpass and trail. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Moved location of Reference Action arrow T12 to be consistent with its location on Map 2 on Page 19. Added Designate Access Points on either end of the Talon Trail. Added Designate Access Point just north of Glider Access re-route. Removed OSMP access point icon southwest of Wonderland Lake. Changed Schneider Gulch to Schneider Draw.

Pg. 22 After Actions T22 and T23 added double asterisk ** to correspond with a Note at the bottom of the page that reads "OSMP trail and trailhead standards available in the North TSA Inventory and Assessment Report. For current information about OSMP standards, visit osmp.org"

Pg. 22. Removed Cost Estimate for Action T22, T23 and T24.

Pg. 22: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

North TSA Draft Plan- City Council Version: Log of Revisions - May 2016

Pg. 23: Added Call-out box with "Recommendations for undesignated trails" language under Action T25. Language reads "The North TSA recommendations will result in some undesignated trails being integrated into the designated trail system and other undesignated trails being closed and vegetation restored. A few undesignated trails are used for authorized vehicle access and will be retained for this purpose. A table in the call-out box includes North TSA Recommendations for Undesignated Trails and the mileage.

Pg. 23: Revised text next to illustration of arogos skipper to read "Illustration of a **globally** rare arogos skipper..." And moved illustration to page 18 to allow room for added text on page 23.

Pg. 23: Removed Cost Estimate for Action T25, T26, T27.

Pg. 23: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Plan Recommendations: North Foothills Subarea

Pg. 26: Removed Cost Estimate for Action NF1, NF2 and NF3 and Cost Equivalents Information

Pg. 26: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 27: Map 3: Changed Schneider Gulch to Schneider Draw. Moved location of Close Access Point icon and text in legend.

Pg. 28: For Action NF4 Updated action language to read "As opportunities arise, collaborate with partner agencies to create regional trail connections **in a way that minimizes** natural resource impacts."

Pg. 28: For Action NF5 Updated action language to read "As opportunities arise, collaborate with partner agencies to create local trail connections **in a way that minimizes** natural resource impacts."

Pg. 28: Removed Cost Estimate for Action NF4 and NF5.

Pg. 28: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 29: Map 4: Changed Schneider Gulch to Schneider Draw. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Moved location of Close Access Point icon and text in legend.

Pg. 30: For Action NF6 Updated action language to read "As opportunities arise, collaborate with partner agencies to create local trail connections **in a way that minimizes** natural resource impacts."

Pg. 30: Removed Cost Estimate for Action NF6 and NF7.

Pg. 30: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 31: Map 4: Changed Schneider Gulch to Schneider Draw. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Moved location of Close Access Point icon and text in legend.

Pg. 32: Removed Cost Estimate for Action NF8, NF9 and NF10.

Pg. 32: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 33: Map 5: Moved location of OSMP Access Point icon and text and Close Access Point icon and text in legend.

Pg. 34: Removed Cost Estimate for Action NF11 and NF12.

North TSA Draft Plan- City Council Version: Log of Revisions - May 2016

Pg. 34: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 35: Map 5: Moved location of OSMP Access Point icon and text and Close Access Point icon and text in legend.

Pg. 36: Action NF13: Changed Primary Goal language to read: Increase connectivity among North TSA properties while minimizing natural resource impacts to ~~the~~ **every** extent possible.

Pg. 36: Action NF13: In last bullet point under Driving Factors/Benefits, changed it to read: "In a few locations where a pedestrian/equestrian designed trail, rather than bike-accessible trail, can reduce resource impacts, consider designing these sections ~~so~~ **with the option** that cyclists may need to dismount their bikes.

Pg. 36: Action NF14: Updated Action NF14 language to read: "Include the ~~connector trail~~ **North Sky Trail** in the muddy closure program."

Pg. 36: Removed Cost Estimate for Action NF13 and NF14.

Pg. 36: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 37: Map 6: Changed Schneider Gulch to Schneider Draw. Moved location of OSMP Access Point icon and text and Close Access Point icon and text in legend.

Pg. 38: Removed Cost Estimate for Action NF15, NF16 and NF17.

Pg. 38: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 39: Map 6: Changed Schneider Gulch to Schneider Draw. Moved location of OSMP Access Point icon and text and Close Access Point icon and text in legend.

Pg. 40: Added Action NF20: After City Council approval of the North TSA Plan, staff will return to the OSBT with monitoring recommendations for the North Foothills HCA, the North Sky Trail and the Joder property. ~~Bring back to the OSBT an ecological monitoring program for the North Sky Trail and the Joder property.~~

Pg. 40: Added Action NF20 Primary Goal: Have staff endeavor to develop and bring back to the OSBT an ecological monitoring program for the North Sky Trail and the Joder property in light of the important ecological qualities of these properties.

Pg. 40: Added Action NF20 Driving Factor: Action added by OSBT during approval of the draft plan.

Pg. 40: Removed Cost Estimate for Action NF18 and NF19.

Pg. 40: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 41: Map 7: Changed Schneider Gulch to Schneider Draw. Updated property north of conservation easement to appear as Closed to public access. And included Close to Public Access in legend. Added Action NF20 Reference Arrow to map. Moved location of Close Access Point icon and text in legend.

North TSA Draft Plan- City Council Version: Log of Revisions - May 2016

Pg. 43: Map 8: Changed Schneider Gulch to Schneider Draw. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Updated text box to read: "Seasonal **dog** closure: May 1 to July 31 and updated legend to read "Leash Required: Seasonal Closure May 1 to July 31" Moved location of Close Access Point icon and text, Close to Public Access icon and text and order of Trail Dog Regulations icons in legend.

Pg. 45: Map 9: Changed Schneider Gulch to Schneider Draw. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Moved location of Close Access Point icon and text, Close to Public Access icon and text, and Bikes Allowed icon and text in legend.

Pg. 46: Updated the second table on the page to increase its clarity to read: New Off-Trail Horse Regulations
Horses prohibited off-trail in the North Foothills Habitat Conservation Area (exceptions listed below) (by bullet points in front of the following two statements, instead of having each statement in its own row of the table.) Horses allowed off-trail on the Buckingham ~~P~~property and the Joder property west and north of the Joder Ranch Trail.
~~Horses prohibited off trail inside the Western Joder Loop Trail (Mahogany Loop) for two years following the trail's construction.~~ Horses allowed off-trail inside the Joder Loop Trail (Mahogany Loop) following a two year restriction of off-trail access to allow for the revegetation of undesignated trails.

Pg. 47: Map 10: Changed Schneider Gulch to Schneider Draw. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Moved location of Close Access Point icon and text and Close to Public Access icon and text in legend.

Pg. 49: Map 11: Changed Schneider Gulch to Schneider Draw. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Updated legend to read "Leash Required: Seasonal Closure May 1 to July 31" Changed order of Trail Dog Regulations icons and text in legend.

Plan Recommendations: Boulder Valley Ranch Subarea

Pg. 52: Removed Cost Estimate for Actions B1 to B4 and removed Cost Equivalents information.

Pg. 52: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 53: Map 12: Revised location of Area III arrow and Fourmile Canyon Creek Trail underpass to Cottonwood Trail arrow. Added potential future connection arrow for IBM connector underpass and trail. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Added Designate Access Points on either end of the Talon Trail.

Pg. 54: Actions B5 to B9: Updated text to read "As opportunities arise, collaborate with ~~community and~~ partner agencies to create the following regional trail connections **in a way that minimizes** natural resource impacts.

Pg. 54: After the text Specific to Area III park site, inserted **(B5)**

Pg. 54: After the text Specific to Eagle Trail to Boulder Reservoir Trail connection, inserted **(B9)**

Pg. 54: Specific to Area III park site: Add "**Collaborate with other partner agencies** to provide a north-south trail connection from northern Boulder neighborhoods to North TSA."

Pg. 54: Next to Action B10, updated language to read "Protect aquatic and wetland resources **in and** around ponds on these properties by prohibiting public access to the ponds."

North TSA Draft Plan- City Council Version: Log of Revisions - May 2016

Pg. 54: Removed Cost Estimate for Actions B5 to B9 and Action B10.

Pg. 54: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 55: Map 13: Revised location of Area III arrow (and location of B5 label arrow) and Fourmile Canyon Creek Trail underpass to Cottonwood Trail arrow (and location of B8 label arrow). Added potential future connection arrow for IBM connector underpass and trail. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Added Designate Access Points on either end of the Talon Trail. Revised location of B10 arrow.

Pg. 56: Under the Primary Goal language for Action B11, updated text to read "Designate ~~and manage~~ an access point that is served by a designated trail."

Pg. 56: Removed Cost Estimate from Action B11, B12, B13 and B14.

Pg. 56: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 57: Map 14: Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail.

Pg. 58: Updated action B15 language to read "Create a regional trail connection *in a way that minimizes* natural resource impacts."

Pg. 58: Removed Cost Estimate from Action B15 and B16.

Pg. 58: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 59: Map 15: Revised location of Area III arrow. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Added Designate Access Points on either end of the Talon Trail.

Pg. 60: Removed Cost Estimate from Action B17, B18 and B19.

Pg. 60: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 62: Removed Cost Estimate from Action B20, B21, B22 and B23.

Pg. 62: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 64: Removed Cost Estimate from Action B24, B25, B26 and B27.

Pg. 64: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 65: Map 18: Added text in legend to read: "Trail changes are depicted conceptually. Actual trail alignments will differ."

Pg. 66: Added Action B30: Public access to BVR arena.

Pg. 66: Added Action B30 Primary Goal: Continue to follow the terms of the lease regarding public access to the BVR equestrian arena and concurrently develop options for nearby horse trailer parking and/or seek to provide an equivalent and suitable corral option that will be determined in cooperation with stakeholders that will be vetted and approved in a future public process. Proactively address any conflict issues resulting from public access in future lease negotiations.

Pg. 66: Added Action B30 Driving Factors: Action added by OSBT during approval of the draft plan.

Pg. 66: Removed Cost Estimate from Action B28 and B29.

North TSA Draft Plan- City Council Version: Log of Revisions - May 2016

Pg. 66: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 67: Map 18: Added text in legend to read: "Trail changes are depicted conceptually. Actual trail alignments will differ." Added label arrow for Action B30.

Pg. 68: In New Off-Trail Dog Regulations Table: Change first sentence to read "Dogs ~~prohibited~~ **required to be on leash** on the properties adjacent to the Papini connector trail (Wrangler Trail)."

Pg. 69: Map 19: Revised location of Area III arrow and Fourmile Canyon Creek Trail underpass to Cottonwood Trail arrow. Added potential future connection arrow for IBM connector underpass and trail. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Added Designate Access Points on either end of the Talon Trail. Added text in legend to read: "Trail changes are depicted conceptually. Actual trail alignments will differ." Moved location of Close Access Point icon and text, Close to Public Access icon and text and order of Trail Dog Regulations icons and text in legend.

Pg. 71: Map 20: Revised location of Area III arrow and Fourmile Canyon Creek Trail underpass to Cottonwood Trail arrow. Added potential future connection arrow for IBM connector underpass and trail. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Added Designate Access Points on either end of the Talon Trail. Added text in legend to read: "Trail changes are depicted conceptually. Actual trail alignments will differ." Moved location of Close to Public Access icon and text in legend.

Pg. 73: Map 21: Revised location of Area III arrow and Fourmile Canyon Creek Trail underpass to Cottonwood Trail arrow. Added potential future connection arrow for IBM connector underpass and trail. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Added Designate Access Points on either end of the Talon Trail. Added text in legend to read: "Trail changes are depicted conceptually. Actual trail alignments will differ." Moved location of Close Access Point icon and text and Close to Public Access icon and text in legend.

Pg. 75: Map 22: Change Dog Regulation Area surrounding the Wrangler Trail to be Leash Required. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Added Designate Access Points on either end of the Talon Trail. Added text in legend to read: "Trail changes are depicted conceptually. Actual trail alignments will differ." Changed text in Call-Out box to read "Implement On-Corridor Voice and Sight control to protect natural resources." ~~including ponds which may become native fish refugia.~~ Changed text in Call-Out box to read "Protect aquatic and wetland resources **in and** around ponds on these properties by prohibiting public access to the ponds." and changed the location of the call-out box arrows. Moved the order of Trail Dog Regulations icons and text in the legend.

Plan Recommendations: Wonderland Lake Subarea

Pg. 78: Removed Cost Estimate from Action W1, W2, W3, and W4 and Removed Cost Equivalents.

Pg. 78: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 79: Map 23: Added Designate Access Point just north of Glider Access re-route. Removed OSMP access point icon southwest of Wonderland Lake. Moved the location of Close Access Point icon and text in legend.

Pg. 80: Updated action W7 language to read "As opportunities arise, collaborate with partner agencies to create local trail connections **in a way that minimizes** natural resource impacts."

Pg. 80: Removed Cost Estimate from Action W5, W6 and W7.

North TSA Draft Plan- City Council Version: Log of Revisions - May 2016

Pg. 80: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 81: Map 24: Added Designate Access Point just north of Glider Access re-route. Moved location of Action W7 arrow.

Pg. 82: Removed Cost Estimate from Action W8.

Pg. 82: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 83: Map 25: Added Designate Access Point just north of Glider Access re-route. Removed OSMP access point icon southwest of Wonderland Lake. Moved location of Close Access Point icon and text in legend.

Pg. 84: Removed Cost Estimate from Action W9 and W10.

Pg. 84: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 85: Map 26: Added Designate Access Point just north of Glider Access re-route. Removed OSMP access point icon southwest of Wonderland Lake. Added text in legend to read: "Trail changes are depicted conceptually. Actual trail alignments will differ."

Pg. 86: Removed Cost Estimate from Action W11, W12, W13, W14 and W15.

Pg. 86: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 87: Map 27: Added Designate Access Point just north of Glider Access re-route. Removed OSMP access point icon southwest of Wonderland Lake.

Pg. 88: Updated Action W17 language to read "Establish ~~two~~ hardened pullout areas on the peninsula for educational programming **and a hardened wading access.**"

Pg. 88: Removed Cost Estimate from Action W16, W17, W18 and W19.

Pg. 88: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets.~~ interests met by each action.

Pg. 91: Map 29: Added Designate Access Point just north of Glider Access re-route. Removed OSMP access point icon southwest of Wonderland Lake. Added text in legend to read: "Trail changes are depicted conceptually. Actual trail alignments will differ." Moved location of Close Access Point icon and text and order of Trail Dog Regulations icons and text in legend.

Pg. 93: Map 30: Added Designate Access Point just north of Glider Access re-route. Removed OSMP access point icon southwest of Wonderland Lake. Added text in legend to read: "Trail changes are depicted conceptually. Actual trail alignments will differ." Moved location of Close Access Point icon and text in legend.

Pg. 95: Map 31: Added Designate Access Point just north of Glider Access re-route. Removed OSMP access point icon southwest of Wonderland Lake. Added text in legend to read: "Trail changes are depicted conceptually. Actual trail alignments will differ." Moved location of Close Access Point icon and text in legend.

North TSA Draft Plan- City Council Version: Log of Revisions - May 2016

Pg. 97: Map 32: Added Designate Access Point just north of Glider Access re-route. Removed OSMP access point icon southwest of Wonderland Lake. Changed one Designate Access Point icon to be Existing OSMP Access Point southwest of Wonderland Lake. Added text in legend to read: "Trail changes are depicted conceptually. Actual trail alignments will differ." Changed order of Trail Dog Regulations icons and text in legend.

Plan Recommendations: Northern Properties Subarea

Pg. 100: Removed Cost Estimate from Action NP1 and NP2 and Removed Cost Equivalents information.

Pg. 100: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets~~. interests met by each action.

Pg. 102: Updated "NOTE" in the call-out box to read "IMPORTANT NOTE"

Pg. 102: Updated action NP3 language to read "As opportunities arise, collaborate with partner agencies to create regional connections *in a way that minimizes* natural resource impacts." and Removed Cost Estimate.

Pg. 102: Deleted Action NP4 "Prohibit public access on Waldorf, Ryan, Andrea and Jacob properties." and Action NP5 "Prohibit public access on Bison and Oasis properties." and their corresponding Primary Goal, Driving Factors/Benefits and Costs.

Pg. 102: Added new Action NP4 "Prohibit public access on Waldorf, Ryan, Andrea, Jacob, Bison, Oasis, Steele, Bennett, Stratton, Brewbaker, Berman Brothers, Dodd and Abbott properties." Added new Primary Goal language "Conserve natural and agricultural resources." Added new Driving Factors/Benefits language "The OSBT supported maintaining the current closed to public access status of these Northern Properties."

Pg. 102: Added new Action NP5 "Allow public access on Deluca, Hester and Campbell properties with seasonal closure (May 1 - July 31) for ground nesting bobolinks." Added new Primary Goal language "Allow access to properties while protecting bobolinks and their habitat." Added new Driving Factors/Benefits language "The OSBT supported the current access status of the Northern Properties except that the Deluca, Hester and Campbell properties be closed May 1 - July 31 for protection of ground nesting bobolinks."

Pg. 102: Added new Action NP6 "Allow public access on Johnson, Bruning and Schooley properties." Added new Primary Goal language "Allow access to properties where impacts to natural and agricultural resources are less of a concern." Added new Driving Factors/Benefits language "The OSBT supported maintaining the current open to public access status of these Northern Properties."

Pg. 102: Updated * language to increase clarity to read: *See Appendix D for a full list of ~~which interest(s) each action meets~~. interests met by each action.

Pg. 103: Map 34: Updated Open/Closed access on Northern Properties as follows: Changed Bruning property to Open. Created new graphic in legend for Seasonal Closure (May 1-July 31) for ground nesting bobolinks on Deluca, Hester and Campbell properties. Updated Ref Number arrows to point to correct properties. Added new NP4 Action Reference Number arrow. Moved location of property names on map to accurately reflect their locations.

North TSA Draft Plan- City Council Version: Log of Revisions - May 2016

Pg. 104: Deleted Action NP6 "Prohibit public access on Steele and Bennett properties." and its corresponding Primary Goal, Driving Factors/Benefits and Costs.

Pg. 104: Deleted Action NP7 "Allow public access on Johnson and Schooley properties." and its corresponding Primary Goal, Driving Factors/Benefits and Costs.

Pg. 104: Deleted Action NP8 "Prohibit public access to Deluca, Hester and Campbell properties." and its corresponding Primary Goal, Driving Factors/Benefits and Costs.

Pg. 104: Deleted Action NP9 "Prohibit public access to Stratton, Brewbaker, Berman Brothers, Bruning, Dodd and Abbott properties." and its corresponding Primary Goal, Driving Factors/Benefits and Costs.

Pg. 104: Deleted * language: *See Appendix D for a list of which interest(s) each action meets.

Pg. 105: Deleted Map 34.

Previously pg. 107 (**now page 105**): Map 35: Updated Regulatory Settings on Northern Properties as follows: Changed Bruning property to Voice and Sight Control Access. Create new graphic in legend for Voice and Sight with Seasonal Closure (May 1-July 31) for ground nesting bobolinks on Deluca, Hester and Campbell properties.

Appendices

Under North TSA Plan Appendices, updated Appendix D to read: Recommended Actions, and Interests and Costs Table and Added Appendix E: Scheduling and Estimated Costs for North TSA Projects, Added Appendix F: Feedback Themes Not Included in the Plan and Added Appendix G: Glossary

Appendix A: MAD Map: Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Added Designate Access Points on either end of the Talon Trail. Added Designate Access Point just north of Glider Access re-route. Removed OSMP access point icon southwest of Wonderland Lake. Ensured southwestern portion of Old Kiln loop still appeared on map.

Appendix A: North TSA Recommendations Map: Revised location of Area III arrow and Fourmile Canyon Creek Trail underpass to Cottonwood Trail arrow. Added potential future connection arrow for IBM connector underpass and trail. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Added Designate Access Points on either end of the Talon Trail. Added Designate Access Point just north of Glider Access re-route. Removed OSMP access point icon southwest of Wonderland Lake. Updated Open/Closed access on Northern Properties as follows: Change Bruning property to Open. Create new graphic in legend for Seasonal Closure (May 1-July 31) for ground nesting bobolinks on Deluca, Hester and Campbell properties.

Appendix A: North Foothills Subarea Recommendations Map: Changed Schneider Gulch to Schneider Draw. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail.

Appendix A: BVR Subarea Recommendations Map: Revised location of Area III arrow and Fourmile Canyon Creek Trail underpass to Cottonwood Trail arrow. Added potential future connection arrow for IBM connector underpass and trail. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Added Designate Access Points on either end of the Talon Trail.

Appendix A: Wonderland Lake Subarea Recommendations Map: Added Designate Access Point just north of Glider Access re-route. Removed OSMP access point icon southwest of Wonderland Lake.

North TSA Draft Plan- City Council Version: Log of Revisions - May 2016

Appendix A: Northern Properties Subarea Recommendations Map: Updated Open/Closed access on Northern Properties as follows: Change Bruning property to Open. Create new graphic in legend for Seasonal Closure (May 1-July 31) for ground nesting bobolinks on Deluca, Hester and Campbell properties. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail.

Appendix A: North TSA Dog Recommendations Map: Revised location of Area III arrow and Fourmile Canyon Creek Trail underpass to Cottonwood Trail arrow. Added potential future connection arrow for IBM connector underpass and trail. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Added Designate Access Points on either end of the Talon Trail. Added Designate Access Point just north of Glider Access re-route. Removed OSMP access point icon southwest of Wonderland Lake. Updated Open/Closed access on Northern Properties as follows: Change Bruning property to Open. Create new graphic in legend for Seasonal Closure (May 1-July 31) for ground nesting bobolinks on Deluca, Hester and Campbell properties. Moved the location of the Close Access Point icon and text and changed the order of the Trail Dog Regulations icons and text in the legend.

Appendix A: North TSA Bike Recommendations Map: Revised location of Area III arrow and Fourmile Canyon Creek Trail underpass to Cottonwood Trail arrow. Added potential future connection arrow for IBM connector underpass and trail. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Added Designate Access Points on either end of the Talon Trail. Added Designate Access Point just north of Glider Access re-route. Updated Open/Closed access on Northern Properties as follows: Change Bruning property to Open. Create new graphic in legend for Seasonal Closure (May 1-July 31) for ground nesting bobolinks on Deluca, Hester and Campbell properties. Moved the location of the Close Access Point icon and text in the legend.

Appendix A: North TSA Horse Recommendations Map: Revised location of Area III arrow and Fourmile Canyon Creek Trail underpass to Cottonwood Trail arrow. Added potential future connection arrow for IBM connector underpass and trail. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Added Designate Access Points on either end of the Talon Trail. Added Designate Access Point just north of Glider Access re-route. Removed OSMP access point icon southwest of Wonderland Lake. Removed OSMP access point icon southwest of Wonderland Lake. Updated Open/Closed access on Northern Properties as follows: Change Bruning property to Open. Create new graphic in legend for Seasonal Closure (May 1-July 31) for ground nesting bobolinks on Deluca, Hester and Campbell properties. Moved the location of the Close Access Point icon and text in the legend.

Appendix A: North TSA Regulatory Settings Map: Added Designate Access Points on either end of the Talon Trail. Added Designate Access Point just north of Glider Access re-route. Removed OSMP access point icon southwest of Wonderland Lake. Removed two Designate Access Point icons off of Lefthand Trail. Changed Dog Regulation Area surrounding the Wrangler Trail to be Leash Required. Changed Bruning property to Voice and Sight Control Access. Created new graphic in legend for Voice and Sight with Seasonal Closure (May 1-July 31) for ground nesting bobolinks on Deluca, Hester and Campbell properties. Changed text in Legend to read "Closed to ~~Off trail~~ Public Access". Created new graphic (changed color of stippling, so that it doesn't blend in with dogs prohibited color) in legend for "No off-trail permits allowed" and added stippling to the North Foothills HCA (except for the property north of the conservation easement which remains gray indicating closed to public access). Changed the order of Trail Dog Regulations icons and text and Dog Regulation Areas icons and text in the legend.

North TSA Draft Plan- City Council Version: Log of Revisions - May 2016

Appendix B: Pg. B-3: Updated intro text and table to include the March 9 OSBT meeting during which the board approved the Draft Plan with amendments.

Appendix C: C-3: Updated the classes and visitation numbers to reflect most current data numbers available as follows: ~~1-10,000~~ **9,999** visits per year were classified as very low, ~~10-25,000~~ **24,999** as low, ~~25-50,000~~ **74,999** as medium, ~~50-90,000~~ **and ≥75,000** as high. ~~and 90-110,000 as very high.~~ Sage/Boulder Valley Ranch Trailhead class was changed from T1 to T2. Eagle Trailhead class was changed from T1 to T2. Foothills Trailhead class was changed from T1 to T2. Fourmile Creek Trailhead class was changed from T1 to T3 and the trailhead name was changed to Fourmile Canyon Creek. In the What is Needed Column of the table, the following were added: Horse Trailer Parking (for Eagle Trailhead), Horse Trailer Parking (for Foothills Trailhead), New Kiosk and Entrance Sign (for Fourmile Canyon Creek Trailhead).

Appendix D: On first page: removed Cost information and equivalents introduction language. Added a table showing North TSA interests and their corresponding icons. On all pages: Combined Action Title and Reference Number columns into one column and removed Cost and Cost Notes columns. Pg. D-2: Updated Action T13 to read "IBM Connector Trail **underpass and trail**" Updated Action T10 to T15 to read "As opportunities arise, collaborate with partner agencies to create the following regional trail connections **in a way that minimizes** natural resource impacts." Pg. D-3: Updated Action T16 to T20 to read "As opportunities arise, collaborate with partner agencies to create the following local trail connections **in a way that minimizes** natural resource impacts." Pg. D-4: Updated Action NF4 to read "As opportunities arise, collaborate with partner agencies to create the following regional trail connections **in a way that minimizes** natural resource impacts." Updated Action NF5 to read "As opportunities arise, collaborate with partner agencies to create the following local trail connections **in a way that minimizes** natural resource impacts." Updated Action NF6 to read "As opportunities arise, collaborate with partner agencies to create local trail connections **in a way that minimizes** natural resource impacts." Pg. D-6: Updated Action NF14 to read "Include the ~~connector trail~~ **North Sky Trail** in the muddy closure program." Added new Reference Number and Action NF20. Pg. D-7: Updated Actions B5 to B9 language to read "As opportunities arise, collaborate with partner agencies to create the following regional trail connections **in a way that minimizes** natural resource impacts." Updated Action B10 to read "Protect aquatic and wetland resources **in and** around ponds on these properties by prohibiting public access to the ponds." Pg. D-8: Updated Action B15 language to read: "Create a regional trail connection **in a way that minimizes** natural resource impacts." Pg. D-11: Added new Reference Number and Action B30. Pg. D-12: Updated Action W7 language to read "As opportunities arise, collaborate with partner agencies to create local trail connections **in a way that minimizes** natural resource impacts." Pg. D-13 "Updated Action W17 language to read "Establish ~~two~~ **hardened pullout areas** on the peninsula for educational programming **and a hardened wading access.**" Pg. D-14: Updated Action NP3 to read "As opportunities arise, collaborate with partner agencies to create regional connections **in a way that minimizes** natural resource impacts. Updated Action NP4 language to read "Prohibit public access on Waldorf, Ryan, Andrea, Jacob, Bison, Oasis, Steele, Bennett, Stratton, Brewbaker, Berman Brothers, Dodd and Abbott properties." and updated the Interests accordingly. Updated Action NP5 to read "Allow public access on Deluca, Hester and Campbell properties with seasonal closure (May 1 - July 31) for ground nesting bobolinks." and updated the Interests accordingly. Updated Action NP6 to read "Allow public access on Johnson, Bruning and Schooley properties." and

North TSA Draft Plan- City Council Version: Log of Revisions - May 2016
--

updated the Interests accordingly.

Added Appendix E: Scheduling and Estimated Costs for North TSA Projects

Added Appendix F: Feedback Themes Not Included in Plan
--

Added Appendix G: Glossary
